
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 


Christiansburg Planning Commission 
 Minutes of June 13, 2011 
 
Present: Barry Akers  
  Mark M. Caldwell, III 
  M. H. Dorsett, AICP (arrived at 6:55 pm) 
  Craig Moore, Chairperson 
  Joe Powers 
  Jennifer D. Sowers (arrived at 6:33 pm) 
  Jim Vanhoozier  
  Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary 
 


Non-Voting 


Absent: Ann H. Carter 
  Kevin D. Conner, Vice-Chairperson   
 
Staff/Visitors: Nichole Hair, staff 


 Kali Casper, staff 
 Steve Sandy, Montgomery County Planning Director 
 Frank Radford, M & F Homes, LLC. 
 David Radford, M & F Homes, LLC 
 John Neel, Gay and Neel, Inc. 
 Carol Lindstrom 
  


Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town 
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia to discuss the following items: 
 


 
Public Comment. 


Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.  No public comments were 
given. 
 


 
Approval of meetings minutes for May 31, 2011. 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Commissioner Vanhoozier made a 
motion to recommend approval of the meeting minutes for May 31, 2011.  
Commissioner Caldwell seconded the motion which passed 5-0. 
  
Commissioner Sowers arrived at 6:33 p.m. 
 


 


Presentation by Montgomery County Planning Director Steve Sandy regarding the 
County Comprehensive Plan and urban development areas. 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Mr. Sandy addressed the Planning 
Commission with a summary of the urban development area legislation in 
Montgomery County and its relation to the County’s Comprehensive Plan.  Mr. Sandy 
presented a slide show with his discussion and stated growth was based on Virginia 
Employment Commission projections.  Mr. Sandy stated that two new Zoning 
Districts, Planned Unit Development – Traditional Neighborhood Development and 
Traditional Neighborhood Development – Infill, have been generated as a result of 
the process. 
 
Commissioner Dorsett arrived at 6:55 p.m. 







 June 13, 2011 Page 2 


 


 


Presentation by Montgomery County Planning Director Steve Sandy regarding the 
County Comprehensive Plan and urban development areas – (continued). 


Commissioner Powers inquired if both developed and vacant land can be included as 
urban development areas and Mr. Sandy stated that if developed land is anticipated 
for potential redevelopment it can be included.  Commissioner Dorsett inquired about 
areas in Town that would be considered for UDA designation.  Mr. Wingfield stated 
there are areas along Rt. 114 and South Franklin Street that may be suitable.  
Commissioner Powers inquired if the Comprehensive Plan is finished being updated 
next summer, would the UDA be adopted after that to meet the state requirements.  
Mr. Wingfield indicated the UDA could be adopted in the Comprehensive Plan update 
or an amendment could be done after the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 


 


Council’s intention to adopt an ordinance in regards to a rezoning request by M & F 
Homes, LLC for property on the eastern side of Walters Drive (tax parcel 434 – ((A)) – 
14E) from B-3 General Business to R-2 Two-Family Residential.  The property contains 
1.054 acres and is scheduled as Mixed Use – Residential/Limited Business in the 
Future Land Use Map of the Christiansburg Comprehensive Plan.  The public hearing 
was held June 7, 2011. 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Chairperson Moore read the drafted 
proffers: 1) No more than 2 duplexes (4 units) will be constructed on the subject 
property. 2) The proposed development will be incorporated into the Slate Creek 
Homeowner’s Association and the individual dwellings will be responsible for all 
associated fees and will be entitled to all rights as noted in the HOA documents for 
the original Slate Creek development.  3) No additional open space will be provided 
during the subdivision process. 
 
Commissioner Dorsett made a motion to recommend approval of the rezoning to 
Town Council with the proffers submitted.  Commissioner Vanhoozier seconded the 
motion which passed 7-0.  Commissioner Vanhoozier stated that he sees this as an 
extension of the existing Slate Creek Commons development.  Commissioner 
Powers asked that when the plans are being prepared, that the developer give 
consideration to limiting the access points on Walters Drive. 
 


 


Review of a Conditional Use Permit request by Heath B. Haug for a major home 
occupation for firearms sales at 1477 Scott Street (tax parcel 529 – ((32)) – 10) in the R-
3 Multi-Family Residential District.  The public hearing was held and approval given on 
December 19, 2006. 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Mr. Wingfield indicated Mr. Haug 
submitted a letter to the Town regarding voiding his CUP if the property is sold.   
Chairperson Moore read the letter.  Commissioner Dorsett stated it is her 
understanding the Conditional Use Permit can be altered by the Planning 
Commission after approval has been given.  Mr. Wingfield stated he is unaware of 
any provision that would allow for conditions to be altered after approval.  
Commissioner Dorsett stated she wants to add a sunset clause if allowed.  Mr. 
Wingfield stated he has spoken with the Town Attorney and the attorney feels the 
letter is binding and meets the intent. 







 June 13, 2011 Page 3 


 


 


Review of a Conditional Use Permit request by Heath B. Haug for a major home 
occupation for firearms sales at 1477 Scott Street (tax parcel 529 – ((32)) – 10) in the R-
3 Multi-Family Residential District.  The public hearing was held and approval given on 
December 19, 2006 – (continued). 


Commissioner Vanhoozier made a motion to review the application in 12 months if 
the Conditional Use Permit is not surrendered due to the sale of the property.  
Commissioner Akers seconded the motion. 
 
Ms. Lindstrom inquired as to what happens if someone purchases the property and 
believes they can utilize the CUP and that is not the case.  Commissioner Sowers 
stated it is the seller’s responsibility to disclose the CUP is voided.  Commissioner 
Sowers indicated there is some due diligence on the new owner also. 
 
The motion passed 7-0. 


 


 
Discussion of update to the Christiansburg Comprehensive Plan. 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Chairperson Moore stated a look at a 
Town-wide rezoning may be a good idea.  Commissioner Dorsett stated there are 
areas in Town, like the Park District, where there are multi-family and townhomes in 
the historic areas.  Commissioner Dorsett stated the roads were not designed for the 
number of vehicles coming from such large developments and added that there 
should not be the number of units possible under multi-family regulations as an 
incentive to tear down historic structures.  Commissioner Dorsett stated she would 
like to rezone these areas to R-2 to limit development to single-family homes and 
duplexes.  Commissioner Dorsett stated she would also want to look at areas like 
Slate Creek Commons where there is a large residential development in a district 
zoned for business.  Chairperson Moore inquired if there is a list available of 
properties like the Slate Creek Commons that would be rezoned.   Mr. Wingfield 
stated he can come up with a list of developments such as PHD’s that are zoned for 
a higher density. 
 
Commissioner Dorsett suggested a dedicated PUD district be developed.  Mr. Neel 
stated he would be in favor of such a district depending on how it is written.  Mr. 
Neel stated he is in favor of having a developer bring in a plan and work together 
with Town. Mr. Neel stated that the County has a PUD District with a designated 
base zoning district, which is more confusing.  Mr. Neel stated it is similar to what 
the Town allows but that it is layered differently.  Commissioner Dorsett stated that 
people often assume mixed uses with planned developments.  Mr. Neel stated that 
Blacksburg has a mixed use district but that they don’t appear to want commercial 
use in these areas.  Commissioner Dorsett stated that people think of mixed use as 
business and residential but that planned unit development is typically more 
residential use.  Mr. Neel stated that there have been some successes in Blacksburg 
with traditional neighborhood design with four-unit townhouse blocks that look like a 
single-family residence, but that the commercial lots in mixed use developments are 
still vacant.  Mr. Neel stated that he has theories that this is because people like to 
stop near their offices for coffee or groceries, not near their residence and also that 
this area does not have the volume and density of people as some more urban 
areas.  Mr. Neel added that this area also has topographic constraints and is not as 
connected as an area like Richmond. 







 June 13, 2011 Page 4 


 


 
Discussion of update to the Christiansburg Comprehensive Plan – (continued). 


Commissioner Powers stated there is potential for redevelopment with a lot of 
underutilized commercial properties and there could be more intense use if 
residential infill were allowed in these areas.  Mr. Neel stated that an area like 
Market Place could be innately more valuable with zoning changes.  Commissioner 
Dorsett stated along Radford Street would be an opportunity for a redevelopment 
area.  Commissioner Dorsett suggested rezoning this area as a mixed use area.   
 
Commissioner Powers stated he sees the UDA as an opportunity to look at these 
issues since UDA’s will used across the state and major developers will be aware of 
them.  Commissioner Powers stated through the Comprehensive Plan process there 
will be neighborhoods that will be identified as not wanting to change.    Chairperson 
Moore stated that many people are unaware that there are business uses in 
residential areas and residential uses in business areas.  Commissioner Dorsett 
stated it is important to take this Comprehensive Plan process to a neighborhood 
level.    Commissioner Dorsett stated the subcommittee is at the beginning of the 
Comprehensive Plan process.  Commissioner Dorsett stated surveys will go out in 
the July utility billing.  Chairperson Moore inquired in terms of the meetings this 
summer, if there has been any consideration of bringing in the New River Valley 
PDC staff to assist.  Commissioner Dorsett stated PDC staff would not be brought in 
to assist. 
 
Mr. Wingfield inquired about the number of meetings to be held.  Commissioner 
Dorsett stated there will be 6 formal meetings.  Commissioner Dorsett stated the 
number of informal meeting is up for debate, but that she would estimate 20 to 60.  
Commissioner Dorsett stated Montgomery County had 87 meetings with their 
Comprehensive Plan development.  Commissioner Dorsett stated the number of 
meetings depends on how many organizations want to participate.  Chairperson 
Moore inquired in terms of these meetings, what Commissioner Dorsett is excepting 
of staff.  Commissioner Dorsett indicated Ms. Casper attended last night’s meeting 
with the Civic League.  Commissioner Dorsett indicated she and Commissioner 
Powers have very flexible schedules and will be able to facilitate some meetings. 


 
 
There being no more business Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 7:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Craig Moore, Chairperson    Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary 
 


Non-Voting 





		Christiansburg Planning Commission

		Minutes of June 13, 2011

		Present: Barry Akers

		Mark M. Caldwell, III

		M. H. Dorsett, AICP (arrived at 6:55 pm)

		Craig Moore, Chairperson

		Joe Powers

		Jennifer D. Sowers (arrived at 6:33 pm)

		Jim Vanhoozier

		Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary PNon-Voting

		Absent: Ann H. Carter

		Kevin D. Conner, Vice-Chairperson






 


 


Christiansburg Planning Commission 
 Minutes of June 27, 2011 
 
Present: M. H. Dorsett, AICP  
  Craig Moore, Chairperson 
  Jennifer D. Sowers 
  Jim Vanhoozier  
  Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary 
 


Non-Voting 


Absent: Barry Akers  
  Mark M. Caldwell, III 
  Ann H. Carter 
  Kevin D. Conner, Vice-Chairperson 
  Joe Powers 
 
Staff/Visitors:  Kali Casper, staff 


  Thom Rutledge, Cambria Crossing, L.L.C. 
  Carol Lindstrom 


 
Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town 
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia to discuss the following items: 
 


 
Public Comment. 


Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.  No public comments were 
given. 


 


 
Approval of meetings minutes for June 13, 2011. 


Chairperson Moore noted that Planning Commission does not have a quorum.  
Chairperson Moore advised that Planning Commission will change agenda order and 
skip to agenda item number 5 to see if any other member show up for the other 
discussions. 


 


 


Consideration of amendment of Chapter 30 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code 
in regards to regulations for urban agriculture in Residential Districts. 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion noting that Planning Commission was 
given both a draft ordinance and a draft zoning permit.  Councilman Vanhoozier 
stated that he grew up with chickens in a rural area and that he is opposed to an 
ordinance allowing chickens in residential areas.  Councilman Vanhoozier noted that 
he has listened to the argument on both sides but believes that people who want 
chickens have likely not had prior contact with chickens.  Commissioner Dorsett 
inquired as to Councilman Vanhoozier’s specific objection to chickens.  Councilman 
Vanhoozier mentioned noise in general and from chickens being disturbed by other 
animals and that he has particular problem with the possibility of other animals 
getting into the chickens and the attraction of predator animals.  Commissioner 
Dorsett noted the presence of strays in Town.  Councilman Vanhoozier noted that 
other areas have considered these ordinances and believes that some places, 
possibly Atlanta, may have passed it, but noted the differences in lot sizes within 
other jurisdictions. 







 June 27, 2011 Page 2 
 


 


 


Consideration of amendment of Chapter 30 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code 
in regards to regulations for urban agriculture in Residential Districts. – (continued) 


Ms. Lindstrom pointed out that a noise ordinance has recently been passed and that 
it applies to barking dogs.  Ms. Lindstrom suggested that this new environment (with 
approval of chickens) may cause an increase in barking dogs and complaints.  Ms. 
Lindstrom suggested allowing a reasonable time to adjust and train animals.  
Commissioner Dorsett noted the section on bees in the draft ordinance and as 
someone who is allergic to bees, stated some people may not like to have bees next 
door.  Commissioner Dorsett stated that she does not have a problem with pygmy 
goats and potbellied pigs, but believes those are more like pets than agriculture.  
Commissioner Dorsett stated that individuals who want to farm should live in the 
county.  Commissioner Dorsett cited water runoff as a concern in addition to noise 
and attraction of wild animals which may attack household pets.  Mr. Wingfield noted 
that the Town has been allowing the keeping of three bee stands in residential areas 
within Town limits.  Mr. Wingfield suggested that Planning Commission may want to 
consider changing the setbacks for beekeeping and noted that from investigating 
received complaints, some chickens are well-maintained and some are not. 
 
Commissioner Dorsett noted that the Town has some large lots where it may be 
appropriate but that chickens should be prohibited on small lots such as Lester Street 
and Park Street.  Commissioner Sowers noted that the setback regulation from 
adjoining buildings is intended to address this concern.  Mr. Wingfield stated that 
some other localities have larger lot size requirements but many of the Town lots 
would be ruled out by a larger lot size requirement.  Ms. Lindstrom asked whether 
districts other than residential districts would allow this use under this ordinance.  
Chairperson Moore indicated that all districts except Industrial Districts would allow 
these uses.  Commissioner Dorsett indicated she believed the ordinance should be 
only for Residential Districts.  Chairperson Moore stated that the Planning 
Commission could decide which districts allow urban agriculture.  Commissioner 
Dorsett indicated that she would like to see a minimum lot size of one-half acre.  Mr. 
Wingfield noted that according to a drawing by Commissioner Powers from the 
development committee meeting, Mr. Breinich’s lot would easily allow for chickens 
under the current draft, but that he does not have a half acre lot.   
 
Commissioner Dorsett suggested a minimum lot size with possibility for a variance 
through the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Wingfield suggested exceptions through 
the Planning Commission since a variance requires a public hearing.  Chairperson 
Moore noted the high cost of a variance through the Board of Zoning Appeals.  
Commissioner Dorsett suggested sending requests for variation in the minimum lot 
size to the Board of Zoning Appeals because the public hearing process for the BZA 
is shorter than for the Planning Commission.  Chairperson Moore asked about the 
average workload for the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Mr. Wingfield indicated that the 
Board of Zoning Appeals handles anywhere from 1 or 2 to 9 or 10 hearings each 
year.   







 June 27, 2011 Page 3 
 


 


 


Consideration of amendment of Chapter 30 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code 
in regards to regulations for urban agriculture in Residential Districts. – (continued) 


Chairperson Moore inquired about the possibility of restructuring the variance 
application.  Commissioner Dorsett suggested that special cases could be taken 
through a variance process/appeal process.  Mr. Wingfield stated that the Planning 
Commission could set criteria based on lot size with administrative approval for large 
lot sizes and then go through a hearing with either the Board of Zoning Appeals or 
Planning Commission for smaller lot sizes.  Chairperson Moore asked Commissioner 
Dorsett for thoughts on the suggestion.  Commissioner Dorsett still suggested turning 
over the special cases to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  Commissioner Sowers noted 
that there may not be many requests for chickens. 
 
Chairperson Moore indicated that this will eventually be put to vote.  Councilman 
Vanhoozier noted that he is still against chickens and that it seems that some edits 
should be made.  Commissioner Dorsett would like to remove the R-3 Multi-Family 
Residential District from the draft ordinance.  Commissioner Sowers mentioned that 
single-family and duplexes are allowed in and near the Multi-Family Residential 
District.  Chairperson Moore suggested using lot size rather than district.  Mr. 
Wingfield noted that the Town has a variety of types of housing in the multi-family 
residential districts.  Ms. Lindstrom noted that she would not want businesses in 
Town to have chickens on the premises. 
 
Councilman Vanhoozier noted that this ordinance is meant to protect neighbors.  
Commissioner Dorsett asked about how many areas in Town are Mixed Use Districts.  
Mr. Wingfield stated the Cambria Crossing area and a portion of the Kensington 
development are the only existing Mixed Use Districts.  Commissioner Sowers stated 
that new developments may be mixed use in the future.  Mr. Wingfield indicated that 
the Mixed Use Districts are fairly recent additions to the Town Zoning Ordinance 
being developed as a result of the Comprehensive Plan process and adopted in 
2004.  Commissioner Dorsett suggested that most homeowners’ associations will 
likely exclude chickens.  Commissioner Sowers indicated that this may change with 
the times.  Councilman Vanhoozier noted that covenants are often ignored.  
Commissioner Sowers noted that if the association is not active, restrictions are 
completely ignored.  Mr. Wingfield mentioned that some covenants and deed 
restrictions have sunset clauses.  Chairperson Moore indicated his appreciation of 
the work put into this draft ordinance and suggested using the Planning Commission 
for exceptions until or unless it gets to be overwhelming.  Commissioner Dorsett 
responded indicating her preference for using the Board of Zoning Appeals because 
Planning Commission is an advisory board that must go through Town Council and 
this slows the process.  Chairperson Moore asked Mr. Wingfield about the advisory 
board issue.  Mr. Wingfield suggested asking Town Attorney Jim Guynn about 
whether the Planning Commission could handle these exceptions.   







 June 27, 2011 Page 4 
 


 


 


Consideration of amendment of Chapter 30 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code 
in regards to regulations for urban agriculture in Residential Districts. – (continued) 


Ms. Lindstrom mentioned schools and churches and noted that the Planning 
Commission should try to minimize impact on children in terms of health and safety 
perhaps by a perimeter.  Commissioner Dorsett mentioned the possibility that urban 
agriculture may predate new schools and thus be grandfathered.  Chairperson Moore 
mentioned fencing and other ways to consider safety and limit liability.  Ms. Lindstrom 
mentioned kids shooting pneumatic guns and how completely controlling safety is 
impossible.  Chairperson Moore indicated that the ordinance should minimize the 
impacts of these safety issues.  Chairperson Moore noted his appreciation of the 
work of the Development Subcommittee on this ordinance and indicated that 
Planning Commission will not take action tonight but changes can be made and the 
ordinance will be put on the next meeting’s agenda.  Councilman Vanhoozier noted 
the importance of getting absentee opinions on this matter. 


 


 
Approval of meetings minutes for June 13, 2011. 


Chairperson Moore indicated that Planning Commission still does not have a quorum 
and will not consider the minutes. 
 


 


A Conditional Use Permit amendment request by Cambria Crossing, L.L.C. for property 
on the eastern side of Phoenix Boulevard (tax parcels 465 - ((38)) - 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 
38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, and 46) for a planned housing development in the MU-1 
Mixed Used: Residential – Limited Business District.  The public hearing is set for July 
5, 2011. 


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Commissioner Dorsett noted the use 
of shotgun style houses.  Mr. Rutledge noted the success of this style in other 
communities.  Mr. Rutledge is project manager of Cambria Crossing, L.L.C. and was 
originally granted a Conditional Use Permit for this project in 2005.  Mr. Rutledge 
stated that the single-family homes and some of the townhomes in Phase I are 
complete and Phase II is underway, but only one house is built.  Mr. Rutledge added 
that all lots adjoining Henley Drive have the same lot size, setback, and other 
requirements as those on Henley Drive.  Mr. Rutledge stated that the development 
continues with R-2 use bordering the R-1 use and R-3 use bordering R-2 use, 
furthest from existing houses on Henley Drive.  Mr. Rutledge added that within the 
tough housing market, the townhouse market is flooded.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that 
Cambria Crossing, L.L.C. is requesting to amend the original Conditional Use Permit 
from townhouse lots to single-family lots.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that the townhouses 
range from 1300-2900 square feet and that the shotgun style allows for a different 
option which includes a more private home.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that Cambria 
Crossing, L.L.C. is requesting keeping the same setbacks as the existing single-
family approval and that garages will be in the rear on an alley.   
 







 June 27, 2011 Page 5 
 


 


 


A Conditional Use Permit amendment request by Cambria Crossing, L.L.C. for property 
on the eastern side of Phoenix Boulevard (tax parcels 465 - ((38)) - 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 
38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, and 46) for a planned housing development in the MU-1 
Mixed Used: Residential – Limited Business District.  – (continued) 


Commissioner Dorsett inquired if front porches will be built to create a neighborhood 
feel. Mr. Rutledge stated that there is discussion about doing some front porches.  
Mr. Rutledge indicated that architecturally, they are considering similarities to the 
presented pictures with colors and textures.  Mr. Rutledge stated that the amendment 
request is for decreasing minimum lot size and street frontage.  Mr. Rutledge added 
that Cambria Crossing L.L.C. believes they can be very successful with this and that 
it has never been done before in Town.  Commissioner Dorsett indicated she 
preferred this plan to townhouses.  Mr. Rutledge stated that he spoke with Fire 
Chief/Fire Marshall Hanks, and Mr. Hanks would obviously prefer houses in the 
middle of large lots but has no preference between townhomes and these smaller lot 
sizes with single-family homes.   
 
Commissioner Sowers asked about where children would play.  Mr. Rutledge noted 
that the development has a large amount of open space.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that 
the homeowners’ association maintains everything in Phase I.  Mr. Rutledge stated 
that the development includes a good mix of people including young professionals, 
families, and retirees.  Commissioner Sowers noted her concern with lack of open 
space immediately adjacent to housing units.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that there are 
sidewalks and multiple areas of open space within the development.   
 
Mr. Wingfield asked if the development will still meet the requirements for 
greenspace.  Mr. Rutledge asked about the details of the requirements.  Mr. 
Wingfield read the condition which stated that “Single Family Lots shall have a 
minimum of 30% greenspace.  Two-Family Lots shall have a minimum of 20% 
greenspace.  Townhouse Lots shall have a minimum of 10% greenspace.  All lots 
shall have a minimum of 20% greenspace in the front yard.  Greenspace is defined 
as any grassed areas or landscaped areas.  Townhouse Lots shall have a minimum 
of 20% greenspace in the rear yard.”  Commissioner Sowers left at 7:44 p.m. 


 
Mr. Rutledge stated he would look at the details of the greenspace requirements 
before amending the Conditional Use Permit.  Commissioner Dorsett asked about 
space for a small central park.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that Cambria Crossing cannot 
proffer one but indicated that the developers have considered it.  Mr. Rutledge 
passed out a rendering, which he stated is not a proffer but a general idea of 
setbacks and landscaping for the request.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that there are five 
units in the rendering and that townhouses generally range from 24-27 feet in width.  
Mr. Rutledge indicated that the request is for 30 feet of street frontage.  
Commissioner Dorsett noted the difference between townhouses and single-family 
houses in terms of natural light.  Mr. Rutledge noted the windows in the drawing.  Mr. 
Rutledge stated that there are eight townhomes on the right as you turn in, but the 
developers have left three vacant lots adjoining the built townhouses so that like may 
be bordered by like uses. 







 June 27, 2011 Page 6 
 


 


 


A Conditional Use Permit amendment request by Cambria Crossing, L.L.C. for property 
on the eastern side of Phoenix Boulevard (tax parcels 465 - ((38)) - 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 
38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, and 46) for a planned housing development in the MU-1 
Mixed Used: Residential – Limited Business District.  – (continued) 


Commissioner Dorsett inquired as to designer of the rendering and Mr. Rutledge 
indicated that Mike Neeble did the rendering.  Commissioner Dorsett requested a 
rendering that ages the neighborhood approximately 20 or 30 years.  Mr. Rutledge 
noted that the developer pays close attention to details of landscaping and other 
factors that change with age.  Commissioner Dorsett stated that sometimes 
neighborhoods look great in the beginning but can change.  Commissioner 
Vanhoozier stated that this was a land use decision and not architectural review.  Mr. 
Wingfield noted the required percentages for greenspace and Mr. Rutledge stated he 
would like to confirm that these original conditions can still be met.  Commissioner 
Dorsett inquired about the Connector Route that runs through the Mayflower building 
and behind the subdivision.  Mr. Rutledge noted that it was shown on the original 
subdivision plat.  Mr. Rutledge inquired about the Huckleberry Trail coming through 
this area.  Mr. Wingfield stated that there are multiple options for locating the trail and 
that the Connector Route itself could be used as it will have sidewalks and bike lanes.  
Mr. Rutledge inquired about crossing the railroad tracks and Mr. Wingfield stated that 
there are a few suitable locations over the Norfolk-Southern rail line and that the 
farthest east that has been considered for the trail is the Moose Lodge property.  Mr. 
Rutledge indicated that the developer previously worked with VDOT and the Town to 
relocate the Connector Route so as not to create two neighborhoods from Cambria 
Crossing.  Mr. Rutledge indicated that the Roudabush Drive cul-de-sac could be the 
future intersection with the Connector Route.  Mr. Rutledge stated that the original 
Conditional Use Permit process was long and well thought out. 
 


 
Review of the Capital Improvements Plan for the Fiscal Year 2011-2012.  


Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Chairperson Moore indicated that 
Planning Commission is not required to take action.  Mr. Wingfield noted that 
Planning Commission is not required to review the Capital Improvements Plan unless 
specifically directed by Town Council and stated that Town Council has already 
approved this plan.  Mr. Wingfield stated that staff would still desire the concurrence 
of the Planning Commission.  Commissioner Moore indicated that Planning 
Commission will wait for quorum for this item. 
 
Commissioner Dorsett asked about the definition of capital projects.  Mr. Wingfield 
stated that the Town has no official definition.  Mr. Wingfield indicated that it would 
likely include large cash outlays, large equipment purchases, and large utility 
projects.  Commissioner Dorsett indicated that she does not consider exercise bikes 
a capital project.  Mr. Wingfield stated that he might not include exercise bikes either 
but that Departments were asked for large expenditures.  Commissioner Dorsett 
inquired as to the difference between a Capital Improvements Plan and a Capital 
Improvements Program.  Mr. Wingfield stated that he was not sure that there is a 
difference. 







 June 27, 2011 Page 7 
 


 


 
Review of the Capital Improvements Plan for the Fiscal Year 2011-2012. – (continued) 


Commissioner Dorsett stated that the County used a Program and it required § 15.2-
2232 reviews.  Chairperson Moore indicated that Planning Commission will wait for 
quorum and that the Planning Commission may wish to make recommendations for 
next year.  Mr. Wingfield noted that Director of Parks and Recreation Art Price likely 
included exercise bikes because of the $5,000 cost. 
 
Commissioner Dorsett inquired if the Commission can look at other localities and how 
they handle this.  Councilman Vanhoozier indicated that Parks and Recreation and 
Aquatic Departments historically include everything except personnel.  Mr. Wingfield 
noted that Interim Town Manager Barry Helms sent e-mail to department heads 
concerning this Plan asking for projects and expenditures.  Ms. Lindstrom stated that 
she once asked former Town Manager Lance Terpenny for documents related to the 
Capital Improvements Program and she was advised that the documents did not exist 
because it was a Capital Improvements Plan.  Ms. Lindstrom stated that she looked 
at state code and it does not differentiate between Program and Plan.  Commissioner 
Dorsett inquired about a water line replacement on Depot Street.  Mr. Wingfield 
stated that the cost of a water and sewer project may determine if it is included in the 
Capital Improvements Plan.  Chairperson Moore requested that this item be placed 
on the agenda for the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 


 
Other Business. 


Chairperson Moore asked about the date for the next Planning Commission meeting.  
Mr. Wingfield indicated that there is a joint public hearing on July 5th and the next 
regular meeting will be on July 11th.  Chairperson Moore inquired about the necessity 
of an earlier meeting and Mr. Wingfield mentioned the agenda items.  Chairperson 
Moore indicated that an earlier meeting is not necessary.  Chairperson Moore 
indicated that urban agriculture should be placed on the next agenda.  Mr. Wingfield 
stated that he will take the urban agriculture ordinance back to the Development 
Committee prior to the next meeting.  Commissioner Dorsett indicated that the next 
Comprehensive Plan committee meeting will be held on Tuesday, July 12th


 
.   


 
There being no more business Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 8:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Craig Moore, Chairperson    Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary Non-Voting 





		Christiansburg Planning Commission

		Minutes of June 27, 2011

		Present: M. H. Dorsett, AICP

		Craig Moore, Chairperson

		Jennifer D. Sowers

		Jim Vanhoozier

		Randy S. Wingfield, Secretary PNon-Voting

		Absent: Barry Akers

		Mark M. Caldwell, III

		Ann H. Carter

		Kevin D. Conner, Vice-Chairperson

		Joe Powers
















Ord. 2011-__ 


AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 30 “ZONING” OF THE 
CHRISTIANSBURG TOWN CODE IN REGARDS TO PROVISIONS 


FOR URBAN AGRICULTURE INCLUDING THE KEEPING OF 
CHICKEN HENS, CHICKS, AND BEEHIVE STANDS 
AND PROVISIONS FOR THE KEEPING OF HORSES 


 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia has 
recommended to the Council of the Town of Christiansburg amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance of the Town of Christiansburg; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the intention of the Town Council to pass said ordinance was 
published two consecutive weeks (____________, 2011 and ____________, 2011) in The 
Roanoke Times – New River Current


 


, a newspaper published in and having general 
circulation in the Town of Christiansburg; and, 


 WHEREAS, a joint public hearing of Council and the Planning Commission of the 
Town was held ____________, 2011 and resulted in a recommendation by the Planning 
Commission that the following proposed ordinance revisions be adopted; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Council deems proper so to do, 
 
 Be it ordained by the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia that 
Chapter 30 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code be amended by the addition of 
Sections 30-23(o), 30-31 (o), 30-39(r), 30-48(aa), and Sec. 30-200 Urban agriculture; 
permit required. to Article XXII. Miscellaneous Provisions and the renumeration of 
Articles XXIII. and XXIV., Sections 30-200, 30-201, 30-202, 30-203, and 30-204 as 
Articles XXIV. and XXV., Sections 30-201, 30-202, 30-203, 30-204, and 30-205 as 
follows: 
 


ARTICLE III. RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1A 
 
Sec. 30-23. Permitted uses. 
 


(o) Urban agriculture in accordance with Section 30-200. 
 
 


ARTICLE IV. SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1 
 
Sec. 30-31. Permitted uses. 
 


(o) Urban agriculture in accordance with Section 30-200. 
 
 


ARTICLE V. TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-2 
 
Sec. 30-39. Permitted uses. 
 


(r) Urban agriculture in accordance with Section 30-200. 







Ord. 2011-__ 


 
ARTICLE VI. MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-3 


 
Sec. 30-48. Permitted uses. 
 


(aa) Urban agriculture in accordance with Section 30-200. 
 
 


ARTICLE XXII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
Sec. 30-200. Urban agriculture; zoning permit required. 
 
 The Town of Christiansburg may allow the keeping of no more than a total of six chicken 
hens or chicks and no more than two beehive stands in association with each residence in Town 
as an allowed by right urban agriculture use with an approved urban agriculture zoning permit.  
The urban agriculture zoning permit shall be valid only for the keeping of no more than six 
chicken hens or chicks and no more than three beehive stands with setbacks of 15 feet from all 
property lines and 50 feet from dwellings on adjacent properties and no closer to the street right-
of-way than the primary dwelling.  Such permits shall be valid for chicken hens, chicks, and bees 
only and shall not be valid for the keeping of roosters, ducks, geese, quail, turkeys, ostriches, 
peacocks, or any other nondomesticated pet. 
 
 All approved urban agriculture uses are required to contain the hens and/or chicks and not 
allow them to roam at large.  All approved urban agriculture uses shall maintain the premises in a 
clean and sanitary manner and are required to present measures for food storage and containment 
and disposal of waste prior to approval and shall maintain compliance with all presented 
measures.  The operation of an urban agriculture use shall not include the operation of an abattoir 
or slaughterhouse or the slaughtering or butchering of chicken hens or chicks.  All approved 
urban agriculture uses are subject to inspection by the Zoning Administrator and Health 
Department for compliance.  All applicants for urban agriculture are responsible for obtaining 
permission of the property owner and approval of urban agriculture zoning permits does not 
constitute waiver of any restrictive covenants. 
 
 Applicants for an urban agriculture zoning permit shall submit the following for review 
and approval of the Zoning Administrator: 
 


1) Site drawing showing the size and location of all proposed structures and use areas, 
the setback distances from street rights-of-way, property lines and nearby dwellings, 
and any provisions for screening; 


2) Management plan addressing protection from predators, use of feeding and bedding 
materials, management and disposal of wastes, and other factors deemed relevant for 
the protection of the public health. 


 
 The Town Manager or Zoning Administrator shall have authority to approve urban 
agriculture zoning permits and may revoke such permits for noncompliance.  Should the Town 
Manager or Zoning Administrator have questions regarding the conformity of an urban 
agriculture zoning permit, the permit may be referred to the Planning Commission.  The Planning 
Commission may waive any provision of this Section upon their review.  The keeping of a garden 
for the production of fruit or vegetables shall not require an urban agriculture zoning permit and 
shall be allowed by right in all Zoning Districts. 
 







Ord. 2011-__ 


 Be it further ordained by the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia that 
Section 30-1 be amended by the amendment of the definition of “domestic pet” and 
Section 30-23(b) of Chapter 30 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code be amended 
as follows: 
 


ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 
 
Sec. 30-1. Definitions. 
 
 Domestic pet.  An animal housed at a residence for family purposes as a household pet, 
including domesticated cats, dogs, fish, birds, and other similar animals as determined by the 
Zoning Administrator.  Such use shall be deemed to be allowed by right on residential properties 
in accord with the provisions of Chapter 5 “Animals” and this chapter, but however shall not be 
deemed to include agricultural operations or the raising of non-domesticated animals with the 
exception of approved zoning permits for urban agriculture and approved Conditional Use 
Permits for pygmy goats as domestic pets.  


 


Pygmy goats as domestic pets are allowed with a 
Conditional Use Permit. 


 
ARTICLE III. RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1A 


 
Sec. 30-23. Permitted uses. 
 
 (b) Agriculture and forestry, but not including pens as herein defined or the raising 


or keeping of swine or goats.


 


  Enclosures for horses of at least 4,000 square 
feet for each horse. 


 
This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  If any part of this ordinance is 
deemed unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining parts shall be deemed 
valid. Ordinances or parts of any ordinances of the Town whose provisions are in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 


Upon a call for an aye and nay vote on the foregoing ordinance at a regular 
meeting of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia held ____________, 
2011, the members of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia present 
throughout all deliberations on the foregoing and voting or abstaining, stood as indicated 
opposite their names as follows: 


 


    Aye  Nay  Abstain  
 


Absent 
Mayor Richard G. Ballengee* 
 


D. Michael Barber     
 


Cord Hall      
 


Steve Huppert      
 


Henry Showalter     
 


Bradford J. Stipes     
 


James W. “Jim” Vanhoozier    
 


*Votes only in the event of a tie vote by Council. 







Ord. 2011-__ 


 


 
SEAL: 
 
 
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Michele M. Stipes, Town Clerk   Richard G. Ballengee, Mayor 
 





		ARTICLE III. RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1A

		Sec. 30-23. Permitted uses.

		ARTICLE IV. SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1

		Sec. 30-31. Permitted uses.

		ARTICLE V. TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-2



		Sec. 30-39. Permitted uses.

		ARTICLE VI. MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-3

		Sec. 30-48. Permitted uses.

		ARTICLE XXII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

		Sec. 30-200. Urban agriculture; zoning permit required.

		ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

		Sec. 30-1. Definitions.

		ARTICLE III. RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT R-1A

		Sec. 30-23. Permitted uses.

		Michele M. Stipes, Town Clerk   Richard G. Ballengee, Mayor





